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ABSTRACT

EIA does not require the word “nominal” to be shown when disseminating price information.  The customary practice has been to the show the term “nominal” along side the term “real” when both real and nominal price data are shown in the same table or chart.   Some program offices within EIA have re-labeled previously released price information as “nominal” without showing real price information.  Other offices have expanded the labeling to graphs that show prices but not to the corresponding data tables.  The inconsistent manner in labeling price data across EIA’s website may cause confusion among data users when the same data series appear in multiple information products.   Feedback will be collected from the committee members on their preference for using the “nominal” label when viewing price information. 

QUESTIONS FOR THE COMMITTEE
1) What are committee member’s preferences in using the label “nominal” when viewing price statistics?

INTRODUCTION:

In economics, the terms “nominal” and “real” value are used to show the difference between money valued as currency in the current time period and money valued with inflation adjustments.   When the money supply grows at a different rate than the growth rate for goods and services in the economy, the same amount of money at some time in the future may not have the same value, or purchasing power, as it does in the current time period. 

CURRENT AGENCY PRACTICES: 

EIA does not require the word “nominal” to be shown when releasing price statistics based on actual reported and imputed data values.  The term “nominal” is shown along side the term “real” when both real and nominal price data are shown in the same table or chart.   The majority of the information products released by EIA follow this practice.  Cost data is treated as one form of price data for purposes of discussion in this paper.
In recent years, offices have been inconsistent in labeling price data as nominal.  Sometimes the word “nominal” is used when showing real price data in the same table or chart and sometimes the word “nominal” is used by itself when showing statistics based on actual reported data with no adjustment for inflation or deflation.  The same price data are labeled differently and appear in multiple places on EIA’s website.  This may cause confusion among data users.  Also, some data series appear in multiple information products so using different labels for the same data series impedes the agency’s ability to integrate data series from different energy sources..  For example, the natural gas and petroleum data are used as inputs to the State Energy Profiles, Short Term Energy Outlook, Monthly and Annual Energy Review, and State Energy Data System as well as released separately through Petroleum Navigator and Natural Gas Navigator.
Program offices are inconsistent in disseminating data involving the following issues: 

1) When price data should be labeled as nominal;

2) What price data to label as nominal; and

3) How to label price data as nominal. 

Following are a few examples of inconsistencies.  Energy price tables in Section 9 of the Monthly Energy Review were labeled as nominal without showing any real price data. See http://www.eia.doe.gov/emeu/mer/prices.html
But the average open market price of coal shown in the Annual Coal Report do not use the label “nominal.”

See http://www.eia.doe.gov/cneaf/coal/page/acr/table28.html
The majority of the program offices release price and cost data similar to the Annual Coal Report.   However, in January, 2009, a Coal Price Information Report the table did not show the word “nominal” when showing the data but the labeling in the corresponding graph did use the label “nominal prices” in the title. 
The Natural Gas Monthly changed the units of measurement to include nominal prices in their pdf files but not in the HTML or XLS formatted files.
http://www.eia.doe.gov/pub/oil_gas/natural_gas/data_publications/natural_gas_monthly/current/pdf/table_18.pdf
http://tonto.eia.doe.gov/dnav/ng/ng_cons_sum_a_EPG0_vrs_mmcf_m.htm
EIA is considering revising Statistical Standard No. 14 “Dissemination of Information Based on Reported and Derived Data” to standardized the way price data are disseminated.  A copy of the current and proposed revised standard is provided as an attachment for review.  The proposed revised standard is not final and is a work in progress.
OTHER FEDERAL STATISTICAL AGENCIES
The Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) http://www.bls.gov, U.S. Census Bureau http://www.census.gov/, National Agricultural Statistics Service (NASS) http://www.nass.usda.gov/, and Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) http://www.bea.gov/ only label economic data as “nominal” or “current dollars” when showing the same data series with adjustments for inflation or deflation.  The Census Bureau does not use any labels when showing sales data, the BLS does not use any labels when showing price series and NASS does not use any labels when showing the market value of agricultural products.  BEA uses the terms “current” and “chained” when showing personal income and also uses the terms “current” and “real” when showing real disposable personal income.
FEDSTATS is a website http://www.fedstats.gov/ that provides access to the full range of official statistical information produced by the Federal Government.  A user at this website does not know in advance which Federal agency produces a particular statistic.  The section of the website relating to energy contains cross links to level 2 pages in EIA’s website.  When a user click’s on “Prices, Monthly All Sources” the user is directed to the EIA web page for the Monthly Energy Review (MER).  The MER is the only EIA information product that labeled all of its price data as “nominal.”  So a user that views energy price data from the FEDSTATS website and then visits EIA’s website for more detail will see different labels for the same price data. 
SUMMARY
The proposed revisions to EIA’s Statistical Standard No. 14 standardizes, and provides guidance and consistency in the dissemination of information by requiring price data to be labeled as “nominal” only when real price data are shown in the same table or graph.   Price information should not be labeled as nominal when no real price data are shown.  The proposed revision to the standard is also consistent with the majority of the business practices within EIA and among the other statistical agencies that collect and release business data.  
CURRENT STATISTICAL STANDARD
ENERGY INFORMATION ADMINISTRATION STANDARD 2002-14

Title:  Dissemination of Information Based on Reported and Derived Data (Estimates)

Superseded Version:  Standard 88-05-03

Purpose:  To ensure that EIA customers are aware of how information is produced; i.e., whether it is prepared solely from data reported on EIA surveys, is based on data from non-EIA sources, or is derived using models, and the methodology used to produce the information.  

Applicability:  All EIA information products.

Required Actions:

1. For information based solely on reported data from surveys:

· If the data reflect imputation or other adjustment methods, the methods must be described and be accessible from the data product. 
· For sample surveys, a brief discussion of sampling error and its potential effects on the data must be accessible from the data product.

· Any data item that is a balancing item (i.e., it is not itself reported but is computed as the remainder after other components are taken into account) must be identified. 

· The sources and known limitations of any information from sources outside of EIA must be described.

2. For products with information derived using models:   

· Forecasts and derived estimates must be clearly identified (e.g., in the title, header, footnote, or text of the information product).  If only selected cells in a table are estimates, the cells may be marked “E”.  A description of the forecasting model or derivation procedure must be accessible from the product along with any available evaluation of its accuracy.  Any total or subtotal comprised partially or wholly of estimates must be labeled as well.

· Any number originally disseminated as a projected value must be identified in subsequent releases.  

Related Information:

1. Standard 2002-7, Response Rates and Imputation

2. Standard 2002-19, Accuracy Measures of Data and Estimates

3. Standard 2002-26, Model Documentation

4. Standard 2002-27, Model Archival

5. Standard 2002-28, Proprietary Models

Approval Date:  September 26, 2002

PROPOSED REVISED STATISTICAL STANDARD
ENERGY INFORMATION ADMINISTRATION STANDARD 2009-14

Title:  Dissemination of Information Based on Reported and Derived Data 

Superseded Version:  Standard 2002-14
Purpose:  To ensure that EIA customers understand how information is produced; i.e., whether it is prepared solely from data reported on EIA surveys, is based on data from non-EIA sources, or is derived using models, and the methodology used to produce the information.  

Applicability:  All EIA information products.

Required Actions:

1. For information based solely on reported data from surveys:

a) If the data reflect imputation or other adjustment methods, a description of the methods must be accessible from the information product. 
b) For sample surveys, a brief discussion of sampling error and its potential effects on the data must be accessible from the information product.
c) Any data item that is a balancing item (i.e., it is not itself reported but is computed as the remainder after other components are taken into account) must be identified. 

d) The sources and description of any known limitations of any information from sources outside of EIA must be accessible from the information product.

e) Do not use the term “nominal” when releasing only the reported value for price or cost data.

2. For information  based on reported data from surveys that is adjusted for inflation/deflation:

a) Identify the price deflator and base year that is used to adjust the data for inflation/deflation in the footnote or endnote of the graph or table, or the explanatory note of the report.

b) Use the term “real” when releasing reported values that have been adjusted for inflation/deflation.

c) Use the term “nominal” only when the reported values of the price or cost data are shown with the “real” data value in the same graph or table.   

d) Show the terms “nominal” and “real” either in the row stubs or column heading, or in the title.
3. For products with information derived using models:   

a) Forecasts and derived estimates must be clearly identified (e.g., in the title, header, footnote, or text of the information product).  If only selected cells in a table are model-based estimates, the cells may be marked “E”, or any other appropriate designation may be used such as different font style, with a corresponding footnote or endnote in the information product.  A description of the forecasting model or derivation procedure must be accessible from the product along with any available evaluation of its accuracy.  Any total or subtotal comprised partially or wholly of model-based estimates must be labeled as well.  When possible, model assumptions should be explicitly stated.
b) Any number originally disseminated as a projected value must be identified in subsequent releases.  

Related Information:

6. Standard 2002-7, Response Rates and Imputation

7. Standard 2002-19, Accuracy Measures of Data and Estimates

8. Standard 2002-26, Model Documentation

9. Standard 2002-27, Model Archival

10. Standard 2002-28, Proprietary Models

Approval Date:  

, 2009
This is a working document prepared by the Energy Information Administration (EIA) in order to solicit advice and comment on statistical matters from the American Statistical Association Committee on Energy Statistics.  This topic will be discussed at EIA’s 
Spring 2009 meeting with the Committee to be held April 2, 2009.
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